SREWD

Shell Rock River Watershed District

Type of Meeting: Monthly Board

Date: June 11, 2024

Time: 8:30 AM

Location: Shell Rock River Watershed District

305 S 1t Ave
Albert Lea, MN 56007

AGENDA

1.

2.

Call to Order and Roll Call
Public Forum (Please sign in if you wish to speak. Comments are limited to 3-5 minutes)

Approval of Agenda (Additions/Corrections/Deletions)

Consent Agenda (The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the staff
recommendation and associated documents unless a Manager requests opportunity for discussion.)
Minutes of the May 14, 2024 SRRWD Regular Board Meeting

Minutes of the May 29, 2024 SRRWD Personnel Committee Meeting

May 2024 Treasurer’s Report Subject to Audit

May 2024 Project Fund Treasurer’s Report Subject to Audit

Authorize Payment of Claims

Authorize Payment of Project Fund Disbursements

P anocw

Natural Resources Technician — Mike Wacholz
a. Water Monitoring Update

Project and Program Manager — Courtney Phillips
a. Motion to Award Contractor for Bryson Wetland Restoration
b. Motion to Execute Option to Purchase Hein Property
¢. Grant Updates
d. Fountain Lake In-Lake Habitat Restoration Update

Administrator — Andy Henschel

Motion to Approve Personnel Committee’s Recommendation

Board Manager Appointment Update

Legislative Update/MN Watersheds Update/Summer Tour — June 25-26, 2024
Fountain Lake Restoration Phase 3 Update

Aquatic Vegetation Discussion

Motion to Approve Aquatic Vegetation Survey

mnaoo0oo

Manager’s Items



a. Schedule Budget Workshop
b. Schedule County Ditch Committee Meeting

9. Upcoming Meetings:
a. SRRWD Board Meeting — July 11, 2024

10. Adjourn



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

Shell Rock River Watershed District
Regular Meeting Minutes
May 14, 2024

Managers present: Mick Delger, Al Bakken, Brad Kramer, Joe Pacovsky, Dan DeBoer, Mike
Hanson and Mike Lee

Chairman Delger called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. on May 14, 2024 at the Shell Rock
River Watershed District, 305 S 1% Ave., Albert Lea, MN 56007.

Chairman Delger opened the public hearing for the Panicum Prairie Restoration. Chairman
Delger called for comments three times. No one from the public wished to speak. Chairman
Delger closed the public hearing.

Public Forum — Kathy Niebuhr sought clarification regarding the movement and clearing out of
Confined Disposal Facility (CDF) cell 1.

Manager Kramer offered the following motion:
Move to approve the agenda.
Manager Lee seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Manager Hanson offered the following motion:

Move to approve the consent agenda with the exception of the April 9, 2024 SRRWD
Regular board meeting. Manager Bakken identified a numerical error in the April 9, 2024
SRRWD regular board meeting minutes. The error was corrected.

Minutes of the April 09, 2024 SRRWD Regular Board Meeting
Minutes of the April 15, 2024 SRRWD Workshop
Minutes of the May 7, 2024 SRRWD Workshop
April 2024 Treasurer’s Report Subject to Audit
April 2024 Project Fund Treasurer’s Report Subject to Audit
Authorize Payment of Claims
g. Authorize Payment of Project Fund Disbursements
Manager Pacovsky seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

e e T

Manager Hanson offered the following motion.



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

Move to approve the minutes of the April 9, 2024 SRRWD regular board meeting.
Manager Pacovsky seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Project and Program Manager, Courtney Phillips, continued with the agenda. Referring to 60%
plans, approved by all applicable agencies, Courtney described the Panicum Prairie Restoration
project. Using moist-soil management strategies, including a pump station, weir structure, and
organically built berms, the project will restore the native wetland by retaining water in the
spring and removing water from the County Ditch System. Administrator Henschel also
mentioned that this project will improve water quality and habitat. A parking pad will be
installed for public use and site maintenance. Funding for this project was made possible by the
Lessard-Sams Outdoor Heritage Council. Restoration work will proceed as planned but the stop
log structures will not be put in place until the NRCS easement expires in four years.

Manager Lee offered the following motion:
Move to introduce Resolution 2024-10

Resolution 2024-10
Panicum Prairie Restoration
Approve Project Plan
Project #2020-04

WHEREAS, The Shell Rock River Watershed District Board of Managers (“Board of
Managers”) pursues the mission of implementing reasonable and necessary improvements to the
water-related and other natural resources within its boundaries;

WHEREAS, The Shell Rock River Watershed District (the “District”) is charged with
implementing the Shell Rock River Watershed District Watershed Management Plan (the
“Plan”);

WHEREAS, the Panicum Prairie Restoration Project 2020-04, was initiated on August 11, 2020
by Resolution 2020-13;

WHEREAS, the Board of Managers having reviewed the Project Plan, and has determined that
approval of the Project Plan will further the objectives of the Plan;

THEREFORE, the Board of Managers hereby finds that the Project has the potential to promote
the public interest and welfare, is practicable, and conforms to the watershed management plan as
set forth above.



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

NOW THEREFORE, be it hereby Resolved that the Shell Rock River Watershed District:

Sec. 1: Approves the Panicum Prairie Restoration Project Plan as presented by ISG; and
Sec. 2: Authorizes District staff to conduct work as needed to present this project to the
Board for final review and public hearing as required by law.

Date: May 14, 2024

Manager DeBoer seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the resolution was unanimously approved.

Courtney explained the establishment process as it allows staff to put the Panicum Prairie
Restoration project out for bid.

Manager Hanson offered the following motion:
Move to introduce Resolution 2024-11

Resolution 2024-11
Panicum Prairie Restoration
Project Establishment
Project #2020-04

WHEREAS, The Shell Rock River Watershed District Board of Managers (“Board of
Managers”) pursues the mission of implementing reasonable and necessary improvements to the
water-related and other natural resources within its boundaries;

WHEREAS, The Shell Rock River Watershed District (the “District”) is charged with
implementing the Shell Rock River Watershed District Watershed Management Plan (the
“Plan”);

WHEREAS, the Panicum Prairie Restoration Project 2020-04, was initiated on August 11, 2020
by Resolution 2020-13;

WHEREAS, The Project Plan was forwarded to the Board of Water and Soil Resources and
Department of Natural Resources for their review. BWSR comments were received by letter

dated April 24, 2024 and comments were received from DNR on April 22, 2024;

WHEREAS, On May 14, 2024 by Resolution 2024-10, the Board of Managers approved the
specifications for the Project (the “Project Plan™);

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 14, 2024 to review the Project Plan;



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

WHEREAS, the Board of Managers having reviewed the Project Plan, and has determined that
approval of the Project Plan will further the objectives of the Plan;

THEREFORE, the Board of Managers hereby finds that the Project has the potential to promote
the public interest and welfare, is feasible, and conforms to the Watershed Management Plan as
set forth above.

NOW THEREFORE, be it hereby Resolved that the Shell Rock River Watershed District hereby:
Sec. 1: Establishes Project N0.2020-04 Panicum Prairie Restoration Project;

Sec. 2: Authorizes District Staff to complete the Project as set forth in the Project Plan;

Sec. 3: Authorizes the District Staff to obtain bids; request for approvals and enter into
any  other agreements or contracts necessary to complete the project.

Date: May 14, 2024

Manager Kramer seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the resolution was unanimously approved.

Courtney continued with discussion on the Eberhart Lake easement. The District purchased
property on the east side of Eberhart Lake and there is access from the right away on the south
east corner of the parcel. However, that does not correlate with where the current driveway is.
This easement allows access to the property without moving the driveway.

Manager DeBoer offered the following motion:
Move to enter into easement for Eberhart Lake.
Manager Lee seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Courtney discussed the Lessard-Sams Outdoor Heritage Council grant application for
$4,246,500.00 and reported that the District is on Phase 14 of the SRRW Habitat Restoration
Program. Potential projects include additional Fountain Lake in-lake habitat restoration, an
acquisition, oak savannah management, wetland restoration, streambank restoration, buckthorn
removal, and pond restoration.



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

Manager Lee offered the following motion:
Move to introduce Resolution 2024-12

Resolution 2024-12
Shell Rock River Watershed District
L-SOHC Grant Application

BE IT RESOLVED that the Shell Rock River Watershed District, hereinafter referred to as
“Applicant” acts as legal sponsor for the Shell Rock River Watershed Habitat Restoration
Program - Phase XIV contained in the Lessard-Sams Qutdoor Heritage Council (L-SOHC)
Application to be submitted on May 24, 2024, and;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Applicant is hereby authorized to apply to the LSOHC,
hereinafter referred to as “State,” for funding of intended projects on behalf of the Applicant.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Applicant has the legal authority to apply for financial
assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability to ensure adequate
acquisition, maintenance and protection of the intended projects.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Applicant has not incurred any construction costs or has
not entered into any written agreements to purchase property for intended projects.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Applicant has not violated any Federal, State, or local
laws pertaining to fraud bribery, graft, kickbacks, collusion, conflict of interest or other unlawful
or corrupt practice.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon approval of the application by the State, the Applicant
may enter into an agreement with the State for the above-referenced projects, and that the
Applicant certifies that it will comply with all applicable laws and regulations as stated in the
contract agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Andy Henschel, District Administrator for the
Shell Rock River Watershed District, is hereby authorized to execute such Agreements as are
necessary to implement the intended projects on behalf of the Applicant.

Date: May 14, 2024

Manager Pacovsky seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the resolution was unanimously approved.



Agenda [tem #
June 11, 2024

Courtney concluded with an update on SRRWD projects. The Fountain Lake In-Lake Habitat
Restoration bid pack 2 is completed including seeding. J.F. Brennan Company, Inc. has
mobilized the barges for the upcoming bid pack 1 project including rock placement. A
preconstruction meeting has been scheduled for tomorrow the upcoming bid pack 3 work
including the access piece on Bridge Avenue. A preconstruction meeting was held yesterday
with Larson Contracting regarding the Bancroft Creek Wetland Restoration project. The project
is expected to begin in a couple of weeks. Finally, the Bryson Wetland Restoration project plans
have been approved and the project is out for bid. A contractor is expected to be awarded at the
next board meeting. The restoration work will be funded by the Lessard Sams Outdoor Heritage
Council. The easement on the property was funded using Legislative-Citizen Commission on
Minnesota Resources.

Administrator Henschel introduced Mike Wacholz to the Board; however, he is currently out of
the office doing water monitoring training.

Administrator Henschel, referencing maps and soil sample testing data, answered public
questions about lake bottom sediment and moving the contents of CDF cell 1. He explained the
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s management levels for use/reuse, Environmental
Assessment Worksheets (EAW), previous extensive boring and testing, and the bid
specifications. Each board manager commented on the subject and felt comfortable moving
forward the Confined Disposal Facility Dewatered Sediment Excavation and Stockpiling project
without further testing.

Administrator Henschel presented the SRRWD response letters which answered every question
and comment received from agencies regarding the 2024 Fountain Lake Restoration
Environmental Assessment Worksheet.

Manager Pacovsky offered the following motion:
Move to approve the response letters regarding the Fountain Lake Restoration and the
Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW).
Manager Hanson seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Administrator Henschel explained that the District went through the agency’s questions,
including the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA), the Minnesota Department of
Administration’s State Historic Preservation Oftice (SHPO), and the Minnesota Department of
Natural Resources (DNR) at the previous workshop and discussed monitoring, sampling, and



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

mobile phosphorus supporting documents. He also urged the agencies to look at the District’s
One Watershed, One Plan and Total Maximum Daily L.oad reports that show the internal
phosphorus load in Fountain Lake. Administrator Henschel noted the Minnesota Pollution
Control Agency’s support of the project and next steps.

Manager Hanson offered the following motion:
Move to introduce Resolution 2024-13
Resolution No. 2024-13

SHELL ROCK RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT
FOUNTAIN LAKE RESTORATION PROJECT EAST MAIN BAY AND NORTH BAY
PROJECT NO. 2013-02

WHEREAS, the Shell Rock River Watershed District (“District) is the Responsible
Governmental Unit (“RGU”) in the processing of the Environmental Assessment Worksheet
(“EAW?) for the proposed Fountain Lake Restoration Project, consisting of construction of a
Confined Disposal Facility (“CDF”) and dredging of Fountain Lake East Main Bay and North
Bay, (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the District has submitted a copy of all public agencies on the EAW
distribution list, provided a press release to the local paper, published the press release on the
District website, and published a notice of the EAW in the EQB Monitor, all of which were done
in accordance with Minnesota Rules Ch. 4410.

WHEREAS, the thirty (30) day comment period ended April 18, 2024, with three public
agencies commenting;

WHEREAS, the District acknowledges the responses from the Minnesota Department of
Natural Resources, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, and Department of Administration.

WHEREAS, the District conducted a Board Workshop on May 7, 2024, to consider the
comments to the EAW, the responses, and Project;

WHEREAS, the District has responded to all substantive and timely comments on the
EAW;

WHEREAS, the information gathered during the EAW process and the comments
received on the EAW do not support a need for an EIS on the proposed Project;



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

WHEREAS, the District has considered the comments that were received, responses to
the commenting public agencies, and the evidence in the Record;

WHEREAS, the District has been presented and reviewed draft Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Decision in the form as attached to this Resolution;

WHEREAS, the District has complied and will maintain a full Record of Decision,
available for review upon request;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the District, as RGU, that a negative
declaration is made on the need for an EIS for the proposed Project; and

T TT R AT TN e VN AT W TEIE ™Y

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Disirict as RGU, that a Record of Decision has
been prepared on behalf of the District to address the specific comments and concerns of the
responding agencies and supporting the declaration of negative need and the Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Decision is approved and is attached to this Resolution.

ADOPTED by this Board on this 14® of May, 2024.

Manager DeBoer seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the resolution was unanimously approved.

Administrator Henschel presented the Fountain Lake Restoration Phase 3 proposed dredging
plan including locations and cuts. This conceptual plan includes East Main Bay, the Bancroft
channel, and Bancroft Bay. Upon approval, the District will move forward with the permitting
process including plan submission for the MN DNR Public Waters Work permit application.

Manager Hanson offered the following motion.
Move to approve conceptual dredge plans for Phase 3 of the Fountain Lake Restoration
Project.
Manager Kramer seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Administrator Henschel discussed the sale of the County Club Property. Manager Bakken noted
the property was purchased initially for a staging area and wetland credits for the Fountain Lake

Restoration project.

Manager Bakken offered the following motion:



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

Move to introduce Resolution 2024-14
Resolution 2024-14

AWARD SALE OF COUNTRY CLUB PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the Shell Rock River Watershed District Board of Managers (“Board of Managers™)
pursues the mission of improving water quality within its boundaries;

WHEREAS, the Shell Rock River Watershed District (the “SRRWD”) is charged with
implementing the Shell Rock River Watershed District Watershed Management Plan (the
“Management Plan™);

WHEREAS, the SRRWD by Resolution 2020-11 dated August 11, 2020 found the Country Club
Property (the “Property”) excess unused and authorized the District to pursue sale;

WHEREAS, the Property consists of 3 parcels, the large parcel of approximately 30.8 acres
(“Large Parcel”) and 2 smaller residential lots and a sliver to the north, less than one half acre each
(“Small Parcels™);

WHEREAS, the SRRWD completed a wetland restoration project on the Property and used the
wetland credits for the SRRWD to complete other projects with the wetland credits, including the
Fountain Lake Restoration Project — CDF Cell constructions and continue to hold wetland credits
for future use and benefit;

WHEREAS, the SRRWD continues to hold wetland credits with an estimated value of $280,000;
WHEREAS, the SRRWD used wetland credits with a value of $192,000;

WHEREAS, the SRRWD will continue to retain the portion of the Country Club Property where
it implemented wetland protections and wetland credits, consisting of approximately 15.74 acres
of wetland and upland native grasses and wildflowers;

WHEREAS, the SRRWD has followed applicable law and engaged in an open and interactive
process to sell the excess Property including listing with a realtor and engaging in discussion and
negotiations with interested parties since August 2020.

WHEREAS, the Large Parcel have an appraised value of $340,000.00;

WHEREAS, other negotiations with several parties, the highest offer was made by ALEDA for
$245,000.00 plus all closing costs;

WHEREAS, the infrastructure has only been approved through year-end. Therefore, holding onto



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

the property longer will create more expense for SRRWD to obtain additional approval and if
upgrades need to be performed, including to curb, gutter, road, sewer and water infrastructures.

WHEREAS, the sale ends SRRWD expense of insurance and maintenance upon the property
including mowing.

WHEREAS, selling the property for further development and return to tax roll provides benefit to
the community; and

WHEREAS, the SRRWD believes the sale of the Large Parcel is in the best interest of the
SRRWD.

NOW THEREFORE, be it hereby resolved by the SRRWD:

Section 1: The sale of the Large Parcel is approved and is in the best interests of the
SRRWD; and

Section 2: The staff, the Chairman of the Board of Managers, and the Secretary are
authorized to sign all contracts and documents necessary to proceed with
the sale.

Date: May 14, 2024

Manager Lee seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the resolution was unanimously approved.

Administrator Henschel discussed the need to update and purchase a new monitoring database.
The WISKI database will be more user friendly and interactive via the District’s website. The
software is approximately $15,000.00 and the annual support and maintenance fee is
approximately $3,000.00.

Manager Kramer offered the following motion:
Move to purchase water monitoring database.
Manager Pacovsky seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Administrator Henschel discussed purchasing a seeder to allow the District to seed smaller
restoration sites and possibly rent out. The equipment cost is not to exceed $25,000.00. The
District could reimburse themselves through grants.



Agenda Item #
June 11, 2024

Manager DeBoer offered the following motion:
Move to purchase a Trillion seeder.
Manager Kramer seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Administrator Henschel discussed expanding and fencing the District parking lot. The gravel
pad and fence would allow for additional parking and safe equipment storage.

Manager Kramer offered the following motion:
Move to expand the District parking lot not to exceed $7,000.00.
Manager Pacovsky seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.

Manager Lee offered the following motion:

Move to fence parking lot not to exceed $20,000.00.
Manager Pacovsky seconded the motion.
After discussion, a roll call vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.
During Managers Items, Administrator Henschel reminded the board of managers of the
upcoming board appointments. Manager Hanson’s and Manager Pacovsky’s terms will end in
July. Letters of interest must be received by June 14, 2024. Manager Bakken discussed County
tile and tree maintenance on SRRWD projects. He requested a County Drainage Committee
meeting in June.

The next board meeting is schedule for June 11, 2024.

Manager Kramer offered the following motion:
Move to adjourn the meeting.
Manager DeBoer seconded the motion.
After discussion, a vote was taken and the motion was unanimously approved.



Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes
May 29, 2024

The Shell Rock River Watershed District’s Personnel Committee was convened on May 29", 2024, at 4:00
pm to perform annual employee evaluations.

The meeting was called to order and presided by Mick Delger at 4:05 pm.

Present: Mick Delger, Mike Hanson, and Brad Kramer as Board Managers and Personnel Committee
members. Also present SRRWD Attorney Stephanie Haedt. Administrator Andy Henschel was present to
provide information and recommendations. Manager Kramer performed secretarial duties.

Attorney Haedt provided the Committee with an overview of the legal changes that resulted from the
recent legislative session related to employment laws, including new changes to the ESST (Earned Sick
and Safe Time) and Legislative mandates for the State’s new Paid Leave program and other issues that
will affect the District’s employment practices and budgeting. Managers were given time to ask
questions to understand upcoming requirements.

The Committee also discussed the need for a wage review, since the last one was performed in 2019 and
since then many changes have been seen in workforce wage structures throughout all industries. The
Personnel Committee understands the importance of being competitive in the workforce and retaining
productive staff. The Personnel Committee recommends that the Board implement a schedule to have
a wage study performed every 5 years, starting in 2024 or 2025.

Due to the changes in the Earned Sick & Safe Time and Paid Leave requirements by the legislature, the
Personnel Committee recommends that the upcoming Budget Committee consider increasing the
administrative levy to help keep up with inflation and increased legislative mandates to benefit plans
and employment costs.

The Personnel Committee also discussed the Cap to District’s staff ESST that was approved at its January
2024 Meeting, especially for Administrator Henschel’s accrued leave. The Personnel Committee
recommends that Administrator Henschel’s excess ESST/sick time be reimbursed at 50% and split
between 2024 and 2025.

Administrator Henschel left the room for the Committee to continue discussions with Attorney Haedt for
clarification questions. Attorney Haedt was then dismissed from meeting for the Committee to perform
the employee evaluation for Administrator Henschel. His review was highly favorable.

Administrator Henschel was called back in, his review was completed, and the Committee reviewed and
recommends that the Board approve a 2% wage increases for the Program and Project Manager 1, the
Financial Tech 2, and the Education/Qutreach Coordinator, Administrative Assistant 1, and
Administrator. The Committee is also recommending a grade increase for the Program and Project
Manager 1, Education/Outreach Coordinator, and Administrative Assistant 1.

The Committee agrees that the SRRWD is one of the leading watersheds in the state and has a very
cohesive, professional, and technically proficient staff that successfully implements highly technical
projects that no other watersheds in the state are doing, that our projects are providing tangible benefits
to the community and bringing in significant outside funding. The entire staff, under Administrator



Henschel’s leadership, is to be commended, and the appreciation of the Committee and Board should be
noted.

The Personnel Committee adjourned at approximately 5:30 pm.



Income:
A) General and Administrative Levy
B) Liability Insurance Fund
D) Interest
F) Reimbursements
FF.) Other income
Total Income

Checking US Bank

May Receipts

Transfer From Project Fund

May Disbursements

Checking Account Balance 5-31-24

Expenses:

Personnel

1.11 Managers (regular meetings)
1.12 Managers (special meetings)
1.21 Administrator

1.22 Admin Assistant/Outreach
1.23 Technical Specicalist

1.24 Summer Intern

1.26 Financial Technician il

1.27 Program Project Manager
1.31 S.S./Med(Employer's Share=.0765)
1.32 Health Insurance

1.34 PERA

Personnel Subtotal

Travel-Related Expenses

2.11 Manager Meeting Mileage

2.21 Administrator Travel

2.22 Conservation Technician Travel
2.32 Staff Mileage

2.41 Seminar Travel

2.42 Seminar Rooms

2.43 Seminar Meals

Travel Subtotal

Personnel Training

3.11 MAWD Dues

3.21 Educational Organization
3.22 Seminar Fees

3.23 Professional Development
Personnel Training Subtotal

Office Expenses

411 Supplies

4.21 Telephone and Internet
4.31 Postage

4.42 Software

4.51 Utilities/Facility

4.61 Meeting Expense

4.63 Cleaning Service

4.71 Undesignated

Office Expense Subtotal

Shell Rock River Watershed District
Administration Fund Financial Statement

2024
$ 95,264.18
$ 5.64
$ -
$ (49,478.60)
$ 45,791.22

May Year to Date Budget
$ . $ 8,82564 § 250,000.00
$ - $ 219.01 % 20,800.00
$ 564 $ 4517 $ -
$ . $ 24660 $ .
$ - $ 3,067.23 $ =
$ 564 % 12,403.65 $ 270,800.00
May Year To Date Budget
§ " $ 93500 $ 6,500.00
$ * $ 82500 $ 3,500.00
$ 11,672.50 % 30,640.32 $ 22,000.00
$ 4,576.00 $ 1590160 $ 23,000.00
$ 3,760.00 $ 5,452.00
$ - 8 .
$ 6,12160 $ 17,217.00 $ 26,000.00
$ 726076 $ 14,521.52
$ 297952 % 8,49533 $§ 6,000.00
$ 5666.70 $ 8,500.13 $ 13,600.00
$ 242726 $ 4,122.00 $ 4,000.00
$ 44,464.34 $ 106,609.90 $ 104,600.00
$ - $ 88775 § 50.00
$ 157.45 § 50971 $ 2,000.00
$ 109.01 § 160.00 $ -
$ 1474 § 14204 § 1,000.00
$ = $ 73214 § 1,500.00
$ - $ 414624 §$ 2,950.00
$ - $ 29219 § 500.00
$ 281.20 $ 6,870.07 $ 8,000.00
$ - $ = $ 6,000.00
$ - $ - $ 250.00
$ 4 $ 94500 $ 2,000.00
$ 80494 § 80494 § 500.00
$ 804.94 $ 1,74994 § 8,750.00
$ 21468 % 126532 §$ 5,000.00
$ 44861 $ 245045 $ 7,000.00
$ 119.99 § 24995 § 750.00
% 199.94 § 55219 § 500.00
$ 34974 % 287737 $ 35,000.00
$ 1725 $ 14375 % 750.00
$ 14000 $ 49000 $ 2,000.00
$ = $ 1962 $ 200.00
$ 1,490.21 $ 8,048.65 $ 51,200.00



Professional Services

512 Audit

5.21 Bank Charges

5.31 Legal Representation

5.41 Legal Notices

5.51 Bonding/Insurance
Professional Services Subtotal

Capital Expenses

6.11 Equipment

6.21 Lease

6.41 Building Expense
Capital Expenses Subtotal

Project Expenses

7.41 Public Affairs

7.43 Educator

7.44 Reimbursable Public Affairs

7.45 Reimbursable Sale Tax Expense

Project Expenses Subtotal

Reserves
12.1 Reserve

Total Expenses

$ - $ - $ 13,000.00
$ 32375 % 1,743.04 $ 3,000.00
$ = $ . $ 3,000.00
$ 5270 $ 18360 $ 3,000.00
$ = $ 10,629.00 $ 38,250.00
$ 37645 § 12,455.64 §$ 60,250.00
$ 11999 § 540754 $ 3,000.00
$ 5724 $ 31269 $§ 4,000.00
$ -8 =

$ 177.23 $ 5,720.23 $ 7,000.00
$ - 8 - 8 -

$ - 8 - $ -

$ -8 - $ -

$ 1,889.87 $ 1,029.10 % -

$ 1,889.87 $ 1,029.10 $ -

$ = $ " $ 30,000.00
$ 49,484.24 $ 142,483.53 $ 269,800.00



Shell Rock River Watershed District
Project Fund Financial Statement

Income:
AA Local Sales Tax
AA. 1 Bond Fund Levy
BB Reimbursements

BB 22 L-SOHC Grant Phase VIl
BB 23 L-SOHC Grant Phase IX

BB 24 L-SOHC Grant Phase X

BB 24 L-SOHC Grant Phase XI

BB 28 BWSR Implementation Grant
BB 27 LCCMR 2020 Grant

BB 29 L-SOHC Grant XlI

BB 30 State Bonding Dredging

BB 31 WBIF 2024
BB Reimbursement
CC Loan
CC 01 MN CWP Loan
DD investment Income
EE Other Income
2022 Carry Over
Total Income

Checking US Bank

Savings Account Balance

Debt Service Fund

BWSR Targeted Watershed Fund
Accentra Savings Acct Balance
May Receipts

May Disbursements

Project Account Balance 5-31-24

Expenses:
100 Erosion and Water Control
101 Legal & Professional
102 Engineering/Technician
102.1 Engineering

102.2 Admin. Technician Reimb.
102.3 Wedge Creek Restoration

102.7 FL In Lake Habitat
103 Studies
104 Projects

104.1 District Cost-Share Program
104.17 Orr Wetland Restoration
104.19 IC&E Wetland Phase X

104.20 Fountain Lake In-lake Restoration
104.21 Panicum Prairie Enhancement
104.25 Bancroft Streambank Enhancement

104.30 CPL Wedge Creek

104.31 Bancroft Wetland Restoration

104.99 Insurance
105 Equipment
106 Miscellaneous/Outreach
107 Project Maintenance
Total Erosion and Water Control

2024
May Year to Date Budget

$ 140,251.57 $ 62154052 $ 1,620,000.00
$ - $ - $ 178,625.00
$ $ = $ =
$ - $ 24,465.04 $ 900,300.00
$ - $ 63,04065 $ 750,000.00
$ - $ 10,970.14 $ 839,900.00
$ - $ 17,168.11 $§  1,186,212.00
$ - $ 46,94250 $ 96,664.00
$ = $ 420,000.00 $ 232,300.00
$ $ 6,14836 $ 2,198,000.00
$ = $ = $ 9,000,000.00
$ = $ 273,704.50
$ - % - % -
$ - $ $ -
$ :
$ 62.77 % 502.82 $ :
$ 672.00 $ 149,942.52
$ - $ - $ 1,601,000.00
$ 140,986.34 $ 1,634,425.16 $ 18,603,001.00

$ 686,269.57

$ 999,705.04

$ 88,752.89

$ 388,353.36

$ 30,208.03

$ 140,986.34

$  (298,698.45)

$ 2,035,576.78

May Year to Date Budget

$ 4796.00 $ 7,293.00 $ 2,500.00
$ - $ —
$ . $ - $ 5,000.00
$ $ 29,438.10 % 200,000.00
$ - $ #
$ - $ =
$ - % - % -
$ - 8 - % C
$ 40.00 $ 80.00 $ 50,000.00
$ - % - $ “
$ - $ -8 +
$ 99,427.00 % 99,599.55 $ 900,775.00
$ 19,566.25 $ 34,253.00 $ 325,500.00
$ -8 -
$ - $ 2,520.00
5 10,208.75 $ 18,487.80 $ 365,000.00
$ -3 -
$ $ . $ 1,000.00
$ - $ -
$ - $ - 1,500.00
$ 134,038.00 $ 191,671.45 $§  1,851,275.00



260 BWSR Implementation Grant
261 Lcgal & Profcssional
262 Engineering
262.1 Engineering
262.2 Admin Technician Reimb.
264 Project
264.1 Cost Share
264.2 Rain Gardens
264.3 Well Sealing
264.4 Street Sweeping
264.5 Septic Upgrades
264.6 Project Development
264.7 Education/Outreach

400 Subwatershed Projects

401 Legal & Professional

402 Engineering/Technician
402 .1 Engineering
402.2 Admin. Technician Reimb.
402 .6 Pickerel Lake Dam
402.7 Lower Twin Lake Fish Barrier

403 Studies

404 Projecis
404.15 Mud Lake Property
404.17 Owens Property
404 21 1Watershed 1Plan
404.22 Schroeder Property
404.23 Church Lake Property
404.24 Orr Property
404.26 Glenville Property
404 .27 Bancroft Property
404.28 Belshan Property VII
404.29 Belshan Property X
404.30 Eberthart Property
404.31 Bryson Property
404.32 Church Lake Property #2
404.34 Goose Lake Property
404 .35 Hein Property
404.99 Insurance

405 Equipment

406 Miscellaneous/Outreach

407 Project Maintenance

Total Subwatershed Projects

500 Dredging Elements
501 Legal & Professional
502 Engineering/Technician
502.1 Eng. Albert Lea Lake
502.2 Admin. Technician Reimb.
502.3 Eng. Fountain Lake
503 Studies
504 Projects
504.1 Fountain Lake Land Pursuits
504.2 Dredging
504.3 CDF
504.99 Insurance
505 Equipment
506 Miscellaneous/Outreach
507 Project Maintenance
Total Dredging

$ - s

$ $

$ $

$ - $ - $ 5,000.00
$ - $ = $ 10,000.00
$ -8 -

$ 691.28 $ 3,931.28 §$ 50,000.00
$ - $ 10,000.00 $ -

$ - $ - $ 5,000.00
$ -3 -8 -

$ - $ - $ 10,000.00
$ 203822 $ 2,038.22 $ 10,000.00
$ - $ 2,063.46 $ 16,278.00
$ 2,72950 $ 18,032.96 $ 106,278.00
$ 11,958.20 $ 32,090.95 $ 5,000.00
$ -3 - 0§ .

$ - - -

$ $ 31,883.26 $ 156,000.00
$ $ - :

$ $ $

$ -8 -3

d 18Y./0 D 13,0UY.01 P =

$ - $ 288.75 $ -

$ $ 8250 $ :

$ - $ 151.25 $ =

$ $ 19.86 $ -

$ $ 1267 $ -

$ $ 248753 $ -

$ -3 - 8 .

$ - $ 1,205.53 $ e

$ = $ 693 % -

$ -8 - s .

$ . $ 1,565.00

$ = $ 42297150 $ 232,000.00
$ - $ - $ 71,500.00
$ = $ 600.00 $ =

$ > $ 7,84420 $ i

$ -8 - —

$ - $ 4745744 § 5,000.00
$ 2,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ B

$ 74087 $ 3,257.34 $ 2,500.00
$ 14,888.82 $ 571,434.22 $ 472,000.00
$ 25,863.75 % 36,293.75 $ -

$ -8 :

$ $ - ,

$ - $ 14,449.87 § 80,000.00
$ 46,178.38 $ 250,148.44 $ 500,000.00
$ -8 - iy :

$ - s - 8 :

$ - s - 8§ s

$ - $ 147440 § 2,000,000.00
$ = $ 26,037.50 $ 750,000.00
$ $ & 3 20,000.00
$ -8 - if ;

$ - s - 8

$ -8 - s .

$ 72,04213 $ 328,403.96 $ 3,350,000.00



600 Water Monitoring
601 Legal & Professional
602 Engineering/Technician
602.1 Engineering
602.2 Admin. Technician Reimb.
603 Studies
604 Projects
604.1 TMDL Implementation
604.2 SWAG Grant
604.99 Insurance
605 Infrastructure
606 Miscellaneous
607 Project Maintenance
Total Water Monitoring

800 Reserve
804 Projects
804.1 Projects/Cash reserve
Total Project/Cash Reserve
805 Grants
804.9 L-S Phase IX
804.10 L-S Phase X
804.11 L-S Phase XI
804.12 L-S Phase XII
804.13 State Bgond Fund Dredging
Total Grant Reserves

Total Reserves

900 Debt Services

901 Debt Expense

902 Bond Funds

903 MPCA Loan Payment
Total Debt Services

Total Disbursements

$ - $ - $ -
3 =
$ -8 S 5,000.00
$ -8 501632 § 20,000.00
$ -8 -8 14,000.00
$ - $ - $ =
$ -8 $
$ - $ -
$ - %
$ -8 $ 1,000.00
$ - $ - 8 .
$ - 3 - 8 1,000.00
$ - § 501632 § 41,000.00
$ - 3
$ -8 = 3,134,336.00
$ S - 3,134,336.00
$ - $ -
$ -8 - 254,500.00
$ S - 344,900.00
$ - 8 882,712.00
2,198,000.00
5,650,000.00
$ - 8 9,330,112.00
12,464,448 00
$ $ 20,778.75 $ 58,000.00
$ - 8 125,000.00 $  110,000.00
$ 75,000.00 $ 75,000.00 $  150,000.00
$ 75,000.00 $ 220,778.75 $  318,000.00
$  298,698.45 $  1,335337.66 $ 18,603,001.00



Courtney Phillips
Mileage

Mike Wacholz
Mileage
Seminar Parking
Supplies

Andy Henschel
Mileage

Payroll
Payroll

Verizon Wireless
Cell Phone Service

US Bank
Office Expenses
Project Expense
Software
Office Supplies
Seminar Fee
Staff Development
Meeting Expense

Freeborn Mower Cooperative Services
Utilities

Minnesota Electric
Utilities

Hy-Vee
Inv# 4873181024
Inv# 4873181024

City of Albert Lea
Utilities

Quill
Inv# 38746821

Culligan
Water Service

Albert Lea Freeborn County Chamber
Inv# 21828

Katie's Cleaning
Cleaning Service

Spectrum
Statement

Albert Lea Tribune
Ad# 1814043
Subscription renewal
Ad# 1804210

Shell Rock River Watershed District
Unpaid Bill Detail
June 4, 2024

2.22 Conservation Tech Travel

2.22 Conservation Tech Travel
2.41 Seminar Travel
7.45 Reimbursable Project Expense

2.21 Administrator Travel

2100 Payroll Liabilities

4.21 Telephone & Internet

4.31 Postage

7.45 Reimbursable Project Expense
4.42 Software

4.11 Office Supplies

3.22 Seminar Fee

3.23 Staff Development

4.61 Meeting Expense

4.51 Utilities/Facility

4.51 Utilities/Facility

4.11 Office Supplies
4.11 Office Supplies

4.51 Utilities/Facility

4.11 Office Supplies

6.21 Lease

4.71 Undesignated

4.63 Cleaning Service

4.21 Telephone & Internet

5.41 Legal Notices
4.71 Undesignated
5.41 Legal Notices

YN B4 B 69 Y e

&“ o

TOTAL

124.55

594.42
13.00
45.30

366.49

44,464.34

293.02

19.99
3,025.19
139.95
159.00
135.23
230.90
17.25

187.00

98.48

19.40
90.11

65.16

267.69

57.24

75.00

175.00

129.98

28.90
168.00
26.35

124.55

652.72

366.49

44,464.34

293.02

3,727.51

187.00

98.48

109.51

65.16

267.69

57.24

75.00

175.00

129.98

223.25

$51,016.94




SRRWD Secretary

SRRWD Treasurer



Freeborn-Mower Cooperative Services

Acct# 1946200
Acct# 2111800
Acct# 2077100
Acct# 2878000
Acct# 1206500

Verizon Wireless
April Statement

Thompson Sanitation, Inc.
Acct 10837

Freeborn County SWCD
Inv# 23-186
Invi# 24-288
Inv# 24-289

Peterson Kolker Haedt & Benda

[nv# 72740
Inv# 72741
Inv# 72742
Inv# 72743
Inv# 72745
Inv# 72746
Inv# 72747
Inv# 72748
Inv# 72749
Inv# 72750
Inv# 72751
Inv# 72752
Inv# 72753
Inv# 72754
Inv# 72755
Inv# 72756
Inv# 72758
Inv# 72759

Bomgaars
Inv# 80044167

JHS
Inv# 45464

J.F. Brennan
Pay App #1

Minnesota Native Landscape
Inv# 44785

Reeyeling Association of MN
[nv# 512677

ISG
Inv# 104585

The Tribune
Adi# 1814976

Rain Barrel Cost Share

Project Fund- Shell Rock River Watershed District

Unpaid Bill Detail
June 4, 2024

404 Subwatershed Project
404 Subwatershed Project
404 Subwatershed Project
404 Subwatershed Project
404 Subwatershed Project

404 Subwatershed Project

407 Subwatershed Project

264 BWSR WBIF
264 BWSR WBIF
264 BWSR WBIF

401 Subwatershed Project

401 Subwatershed Project

401 Subwatershed Project

501 Dredging

101 Erosion and Water Control
501 Dredging

101 Erosion and Water Control
101 Erosion and Water Control
501 Dredging

401 Subwatershed Project

401 Subwatershed Project

101 Erosion and Water Control
401 Subwatershed Project

401 Subwatershed Project

401 Subwatershed Project

101 Erosion and Water Control
501 Dredging

401 Subwatershed Project

405 Subwatershed Project

404 Subwatershed Project

104 Erosion and Water Control

104 Erosion and Water Control

404 Subwatershed Project

101 Erosion and Water Control

101 Erosion and Water Control

@ H A B

61.00
85.00
82.00
48.00
196.00

149.80

119.07

@~ P

1,000.00
254.43
2,959.38

R R R R R L R B I N i I SR S

5,513.75
9.40
110.00
41.25
239,25
15,829.00
734.25
261.25
27.50
1,031.25
27.50
756.25
508.75
2,103.75
715.00
412.50
618.00
288.75

82.88

762.50

148,960.00

8,560.00

6,480.00

11,303.53

168.30

472.00

149.80

119.07

4,213.81

29,227.40

82.88

762.50

148,960.00

8,560.00

6,480.00

11,303.53

168.30



Mike Leiste 104 Erosion and Water Control $ 10.00
$ 10,00

Total $210,509.29

SRRWD, Secretary

SRRWD Treasurer



@Beaco N’ Freeborn County, MN

Owenﬁqg

A | |

i

|
|
LLgend
D Parcels
I:_! County Limits
- Lot Lines-Albert
Lea
D Townships
Roads and Highways
[ 2019
2020
B 2021
B 2022

Parcel ID 030050090 Alternate ID n/a Owner Address HEIN,MICHAEL & CHRISTINER TR
Sec/Twp/Rng 05-101-021 Class 101 - (NON-HSTD) AGRICULTURAL N72 PINE PL
Property Address Acreage 76.35 MERRILLAN, WI 54754
GLENVILLE
District FREEMAN TWP 241 SRRW
Brief Tax Description Sect-05 Twp-101 Range-021 76.35 AC REV DESC NO. 2487 PT SE1/4 SW1/4 & SW1/4 SE1/4 5-101-21 76.35 ACRES
(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 6/4/2024
Last Data Uploaded: 6/4/2024 5:02:49 AM

Developed by" Schneider

GEOSPATIAL



OFFICE OF COUNTY RECORDER
FREEBORN COUNTY, MINNESOTA

DOCUMENT A562833

Certified, Filed, and/or Recorded on:

12-27-2023 at 11:04 AM
KELLY D HENDRICKSON

FREEBORN COUNTY RECORDER

By: SQ

Fee: $46.00

document electronically recorded

OPTION AGREEMENT

This Option Agreement is made and entered into this )\  day of R 023,
by and between Christine Hein and Michael J. Hein as Co-Trustecs of the Michael J. and Chritine
M. Hein Revocable Trust whose address is N72 Pine Place, Merrillan, WI 54754, hercinafter
referred to as (“Seller”), and the Shell Rock River Watershed District, a political subdivision under
the laws of Minnesota, whose principal address is 305 South 1% Avenue, Albert Lea, Minnesota
56007, hereinafter referred to as (“‘Purchaser™), and together herein sometimes referred to as the
“Parties.”

WHEREAS, Seller is the fee simple owner of cerlain real property lying in the County of
Frceborn, Stale of Minnesola, such property being legally described as follows:

Scc attached Exhibit A.
hereinafter referred to as the “‘Property”, and
WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to obtain an option to purchase the Property.
NOW, THEREFORE, for One Thousand Dollars and no/100 ($ 1,000.00), and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the

parties hereto and for the mutual covenants contained herein, Seller and Purchaser hereby agree as
follows:

l. Definitions. For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
following meanings:

A “Execution Date” shall mean the day upon which the last party to this
Agreement shall duly execute this Agreement;



B. “Option Payment” shall mean the total sum of One Thousand Dollars and
no/100 ($1,000.00) in a non-refundable payment Lo Seller;

C. “Option Term” shall mean that period of time commencing at the Execution
Date and ending on or before January 1, 2025, during which time Purchaser has the
exclusive right to purchase the Property from Scller.

D. “Option Excrcise Date” shall mean that date, within the Option Term, upon
which the Purchascr shall send its written notice to Seller exercising its option to purchasc;
and

E. “Closing Datc” shall mean the last day of the Closing Term or such other

date during the Closing Term selected by Purchascr, and in no event shall the closing date
be later than June 30, 2025, unless otherwisc agreed to by the Parties in writing, ot unless
otherwise required in order to cure issues in title as required below.

F. “Closing Agent” shall mean a firm or natural person facilitating the closing
of the transaction in the event the option herein is exercised. In the event an abstract or
abstracts arc provided to Scller, and at the discretion of the Purchascr, the Closing Agent
shall be the law offices of Peterson, Koller, Haedt & Benda, lid. In the event no abstract
or abstracts are provided, and a title commitment and title insurance are required, at the
discretion of the Purchaser, the Closing Agent shall be Landmark Services, LLC (also
referred to herein as “Abstract Agency” and/or “Title Insurance Agency™).

2. Grant of Option. For and in consideration of the Option Payment payable to Seller
as set forth herein, Seller does hereby grant to Purchaser the exclusive right and option (“Option™)
to purchase the Property upon the said terms and conditions as set forth herein.

3. Payment of Option Fee. Purchaser agrees to pay Seller the Option Payment on the
Exccution Date.

4, Exercise of Option. Purchaser may exercise its exclusive right to purchase the
Property pursuant to the Option, at any time during the Option Term, by giving written notice
thereof to Seller. As provided for above, the date of sending of said notice shall be the Option
Exercise Date. In the event the Purchaser does not exercise its exclusive right to purchase the
Property granted by the Option during the Option Term, Seller shall be entitled to retain the Option
Fee, and this Agreement shall become absolutely null and void and neither party hereto shall have
any other liability, obligation, or duty hereunder or pursuant to this Agreement.

5 Appraisal of Property. Purchaser shall facilitate and pay for an appraisal of the
Property. Purchaser shall find and use an appraiser that is qualificd and able to draft an appraisal
that meets all Lessard-Sams Outdoor [Heritage Council requirements. Seller shall be granted an
opportunity to review the appraised valuc that is created pursuant to said appraisal. Should Seller
find said appraised value unacceptable, Seller may cancel this Agreement. However, if Seller
determines to cancel this Agreement bascd on an appraised value that i1s unsalisfactory to Seller,
Scller may not scll the Property to a purchaser other than the Shell Rock River Watershed District




for less than the appraised value within onc (1) yecar of canceling this Agreement without receiving
written approval from the Shell Rock River Watershed District.

0. Contract for Purchase and Sale of Real Property. In the event that Purchaser

exercises its exclusive right to purchase the Property as provided above, Seller agrees to scll and
Purchaser agrees to buy the Property pursuant to the following terms and conditions:

A.

Purchase Price. The purchase price shall be based on appraised value of
the Property. The purchase price shall be in compliance with Appendix E
ol the Outdoor Heritage Council Grant Agreement, and shall be payable in
full at the time of Closing.

Closing Date. Buycr and Scller shall perform at the time of closing as

Seller shall:

Draft, obtain, execute, and deliver, or any combination
thereof, to the Closing Agent (with copies to Purchaser) any
documents necessary to place Seller's title to the Property in
the condition required by this Agreement, and make
arrangements to have the Closing Agent record or file in the
appropriate county land records;

Execute and deliver to Purchaser, or its assigns, the deed
described in paragraph 8 below;

Execute and deliver to Purchaser an affidavit evidencing the
abscnce of bankruptcics, judgments, or tax liens and
evidencing the absence of mechanic's lien rights affecting
the Property, unrecorded interests affecting the Property,
persons in possession of the Property, and known
encroachment or boundary line questions affecting the
Property;

Execute and deliver to the Closing Agent, Purchaser, or
other appropriate party all necessary federal income tax
reporting forms;

Dcliver to Purchaser any abstract of title or abstracts of title
to the Property; and

Pay or provide evidence of payment of the following: The
deed tax due upon the execution of the conveyance described
in paragraph 8, levied or pending special assessments



pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 7, and the Scller’s
pro-rata share of the real estate taxes (or the year of closing
as of the date of closing.

g. Provide possession to purchaser,
i Purchaser shall:
a. Tender the Purchase Price to Seller pursuant to the above

provisions and in the form of a check, certified check, or
other immediately available funds;

b. Pay or provide evidence of payment of the following: The
portion of Purchaser’s pro-rata sharce of real cstate taxes and
special assessments, if any; all costs associated with
Purchasci’s tinancing, if any; the recording fee due upon the
recording of the deed from Seller to Purchaser; and

C. Pay all closing costs.
7. Title Examination. Title examinalion will be conducted as follows:
A. Promptly upon Purchaser’s exercise of the Option, Seller shall furnish

Purchaser an abstract of title or abstracts of title to the Property. Purchaser shall deliver
said abstracts to an Abstract Agency and shall request certification to a current date to
include all appropriate judgment, bankruptey, licn and tax scarches. Purchaser shall be
responsible for the cost associated with updating and certifying said abstract or abstracts.
[f an abstract of title or abstracts of title to the Property do not exist or cannot be found, a
Title Commitment and Title Insurance Policy shall be purchased by Purchaser, instead, for
Purchaser’s sole benefit.

B. Within thirty (30} days afler receiving an abstract of title updated to a
current date or title commitment certificd to a current date for the Property, Purchascr will
make written objections ("Objections”) to the form and/or contents of the abstract of title
or title commitment. Purchaser's failure to make Objections within such time period will
constitute waiver ol Objections. Any malter shown in the abstracts of title and not objected
to by Purchaser shall be a "permitted encumbrance” hereunder. However, any matter
shown in any title commitment or title insurance policy that will nced to be cured as a
requirement of the Title Insurance Agency prior to issuing insurable title shall be
considered an Objection automatically without any notice provided by Purchascr, Scller
will be provided a copy ol the title commitment, if one is procured. Seller will have one
hundred twenty (120) days after receipt of Objections to cure the Objections, during which
period the Closing will be postponed as necessary. Scller shall usc its best cfforts to correct
any Objcctions. [f the Objections are not cured within such one hundred twenty (120) day
period, Purchaser will have the following options:



L. Terminate this Agreement.

i, Withhold from the Purchase Price an amount which, in the
reasonable judgment of Purchaser, is sufficient to assure cure of
the Objections. Any amount so withheld shall be placed in escrow
with the Closing Agent pending such cure. If Seller does not cure
such Objections within ninety (90) days after such escrow is
established, Purchaser may then cure such Objections and charge
the costs of such cure (including rcasonable attorneys' fees) against
the escrowed amount. If such escrow is established, the parties
agree to execute and deliver such documents as may be rcasonably
required by the Closing Agent, and Scller agrees to pay the charges
of the Closing Agent to create and administer the escrow.

iii. Waive the Objections and proceed to close,

C. [f title is marketable, or is made marketable as provided herein, and
Purchaser defaults in any of the agreements herein, Seller may elect the following option,
as permitted by law:

i Cancel this contract as provided by statute and retain all payments
madc hercunder as liquidated damages.

8. Real Estate Taxes and Special Assessments. The parties shall pro-rate the real
estate taxes and special assessments due therewith, if any, for taxes duc and payable in the ycar of
closing on a per diem basis using a calendar year to the Date of Closing. The parties shall pro-rate
the real cstate taxes using current ycar real estate tax information, if availabie, and if current year
tax information is not available, using thc amount of the real estate taxes due and payable in the
year immediately preceding the year of closing. Any such pro-ration shall be final, and no
subscquent adjustments, refunds, or additional payments shall bec made.

9. Conveyance Terms. In the event Purchaser exercises its Option herein and upon
Purchaser’s full performance of Purchascr’s obligations under this Agreement, at closing, Seller
shall execute and deliver to Purchaser a warranty deed conveying [ee litle to the Property to
Purchaser, or its assigns, subject only to:

i Building, zoning, and subdivision statutes, laws, ordinances and
regulations;
1. Restrictions relating to use or improvement of the Property without

effective forfeiture provisions;

i, Reservations of any mineral rights by the Statc of Minnesota; and
iv, Utility and drainage easements which do not interfere with existing
improvements,



10. Miscellancous, Exceution by Both Partics.

A Binding Effect. This Agreement shall not become effective and binding
until fully executed by both Purchascr and Seller,

B. Notice. All notices, demands and/or consents provided for in this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered to the parties hereto by hand, by
United States Mail with postage prepaid, or by email if acknowledged by the receiving
party. Such noticcs shall be decmed to have been served on the date mailed and to Seller
al N72 Pine Place, Merrillan, WI 54754, and to Purchaser at Shell Rock River Watershed
District, Attn.: District Administrator, 305 South 1% Avenue, Albert Lea, MN 56007. or at
such other address as cither may specity to the other in writing.

C. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.

D. Successors and Assigns. This Agrcement shall apply to, inure to the
benefit of, and be binding upon and enforceable against the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, successors, and/or assigns to the cxtent as if it is specified at length
throughout this Agreement.

E. Time. Timc is of the cssence of this Agreement.

k. Headings. The headings nserted at the beginning of each paragraph and
or subparagraph are for convenience of reterence only and shall not limit or otherwise
affect or be used in the construction of any lerms or provisions hereof,

G. Cost of this Agreement. Any cost and/or [ees incuired by the Purchaser or
Seller in executing this Agreement shall be borne by the vespective parties incurring such
cost and/or fee.

. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains all the terms, promises,
covcenants, conditions, and representations made or entered into by or between Seller and
Purchaser and supersedes all prior discussions and agreements whether written or oral,
between Seller and Purchaser with respect to the Option and all other matters contained
herein and constitutes the sole and entire Agreement between Seller and Purchaser with
respect thereto.

. No Modification. This Agreement may not be modilied or amended unless
such amendment is sct forth in writing and exccuted by both Scller and Purchaser with the
formalities hereol.

J. No Contra Proferentem. This Agrcement resulted from arms-length
negotiations and no provisions of this Agreement shall be construed as if it had been
wrilten, propounded or offered by any party to the other party.



K. Immunity. Any and all claims brought by Seller, its successors or
assigns, shall be subject to any governmental immunity defenses of the Grantee and the
maximum liability limits provided under Minnesota Statute Chapter 466.

L. Independent Advice of Counsel.  This Agreement has been drafted by
Pcterson, Kolker, Haedt & Benda, Ltd. at the request of the Purchaser. Peterson, Kolker,
Haedt & Benda is not providing legal advice to the Seller and the Sellers acknowledge no
legal advice has been provided to them by Peterson, Kolker, Hacdt & Benda regarding this
Agrcement.  The individuals arc further advised to scck independent legal counscl
regarding this Agreement. Seller has carefully read and fully understands the terms of this
Agreement. Seller enters into this Agreement voluntarily and of his/her own free will, atter
having the opportunity to consult with legal counscl to the full extent deemed nccessary,
and with sufficient time for consideration. Seller states that his/her willingness to enter
into this Agreement was not induced by, or bascd upon, any representations by any
individual who has not signed this Agreement.

M. Counterparts. This Agrecment may be signed in counterparts. Each
counterpart shall constitute a duplicate original. To facilitate execution, duplicate signature
pages may be executed by Seller and Purchaser with the same forec and effcet as if Scller
and Purchaser had signed on the same page.

N. Brokers. Seller and Purchaser represent that neither have dealt with
any broker or agent in connection with this transaction. Each parly hereby indemnifies and
holds harmless the other party from all loss, cost and expense (including teasonable
attorney’s fees) arising out of a breach of its representation or undertaking set forth in this
paragraph. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive closing or the termination of this
Agrcement,

The Remainder of This Page Has Been Left Intentionally Blank. Signature Pages Follow,



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties attached have caused this Agreement to be
executed.
SELLER:

I’ FAT [ /
Dated: /Lj 8 /}21)./%/\ L) /H([ ‘/I’l #
By: Christine Hein, Co-Trustee of the Michael J.
and Christine M. Hein Revocable Trust

Dated: nlli o R L ’) "(9\ \[~
By: Michael J. Ilew)—as Co- Tlustee of the Michael J.

and Christine M. Hein Revocable Trust

STATE OF_{JScoogin )
) ss.

COUNTY OF [ Crosse )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  this 2) day of
,l\)@uc mbe~ 2023, by Christine Hein, Co-Trustee of the Michael J. and Christine M.
Hein Revocable Trust,

Notarv Pubhc, State of Wlsconsm

Signature of Person Taking Ackno

2 O\Ff%[s

Sean O'Flaherty ]

STATE OF {Jxcoacun )
) ss.

COUNTY OF LaC_&:E»EcJ

The forcgoing instrument was acknowledged before me  this A3  day of
Noyember 2023, by Michael J. Hein as Co-Trustee of the Michael J. and Christine M.
Hein Revocable Trust.

Slonatule of Person Takmg AC

Seund Fle l/w/d)

1()wlt,(11:,n1ent

Sean O'Flaherty
N(_J_t'ary Public, State of Wisconsin

——— e



SHELL ROCK RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT,
A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION UNDER
MINNESOTA LAW

Dated: _ //-/% - 23 ﬁ%zﬁ g /Z_
By: Mick Delger

Its: Chair

04,47 L/
Dated: [/ /4 22> /,J:,A,ﬂ/'/f;jam_ -
Ry: Mﬁyc I'{an,e,(on
[ts: Scéretary

STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF FREEBORN )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this /,_,u'h day of
B N;;ge,-n hei~ , 2023 by Mick Delger, Chair of Shell Rock River Watershed District, a
political subdivision under Minnesota law.

74 | 77 £
CARMEN KAY CHRISTENSEN 3 _é,&;g_ YU "/()/ (&( A2 A sy

Notary Public Signature ol Person Taking/Acknowledgment
Minnesota '

My Commission Expires
Jan 31, 2025

STATE OF MINNESOTA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF FREEBORN )

44
The forcgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this g‘r‘ day of
A ;’gi’f‘rwbet", 2023 by Mike Hanson, Secretary of Shell Rock River Watershed District, a
political subdivision under Minnesota law.

// oA s -
. ”/2/) Vg &L /{(fw L_/:-/Z’e,{x/% yeid o
CARMEN KAY CHRISTENSEN . — —ﬂ?f ———
Notary Public Signature of Person Taking Acknowledgment

Minnesata

My Commission Expires
Jarr 31, 2025




DOCUMENT DRAFTED BY:

Eythan G, Frandle

PETERSON, KOLKER, HAEDT & BENDA, LTD.
1811 Broadway Avenue S.E.

Albert Lea, MN 56007

(507) 373-6491

Fax: (507) 373-7863

efrandle@albertlealaw.com



EXHIBIT A

West 2 of the NEY of Section 8, Township 101, Range 21;

and

SEY4 of the SW' and the SW¥4 of the SE% all in Section 5, Township 101, Range 21, LESS
THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY;

Commencing at the southwest comer of the SEY of Section 5, Township 101N, R-21 W;
thence South 89°56'02" West a distance of 27.67 feet, on the south line of the SWV4 of said
Section 5;

thence North 00°07'21" East a distance of 1281.22 to a point on the south right-of-way line of
County State Aid Highway No. 13;

thence North 89°37'39" West a distance of 33.14 feet, on the south right-of-way line of said
County State Aid Highway No. 13;

thence North 00°22'21" East a distance of 32.36 feet, to a point on the north line of the SEY SW
Y4 of said Section 5;

thence South 89°57'27" East a distance of 66.00 feet, on the north line of the S ¥ SW Y of said
Section 5

thence South 00°07'21" West a distance of 871.03 feet;

thence South 89°56'02" East a distance of 332.58 feet;

thence South 02°57'25" East a distance of 1074.83 feet;

thence North 89°56'02" West a distance of 394.44 feet, to a point on the west line of the NEY4 of
Section 8, Township 101N, R21 W;

thence North 00°00'42" East a distance of 630.66 feet, on the west line of the NEV4 of said
Section 8, to the point of beginning;

subject to highway easement on the north side thereof and ingress, egress and utility easement;
together with an easement for ingress and egress over the north 540.00 of the east 27.67 feet of
the NEY4a NWY Section 8-TI0IN-R21W.

together with a non-exclusive easement for driveway and utility purposes over and across the
tollowing described property:

Commencing at the southwest corner of the SE% of Section 5, Township 101N, R-21 W;

thence South 89°56'02" West a distance of 27.67 feet, on the south line of the SWY of said
Section 5;

thence North 00°07'21" East a distance of 442.55 feet, to the point of beginning of the easement
tract;

thence continuing North 00°07'21" East a distance of 838.67 more or less to a point on the south
right-of-way line of County State Aid Highway No. 13;

thence North 89°37'39" West a distance of 33.14 feet, on the south right-of-way line of said
County State Aid Highway No. 13;

thence North 00°22'21" East a distance of 32.36 feet, to a point on the north line of the SEV4 SW
Y4 of said Section 5;

thence South 89°57'27" East a distance of 66.00 feet, on the north line of the S .SW Y4 of said
Section 5;

thence South 00°0721" West a distance of 871.03 feet;

thence North 89°56'21" West a distance of 33.00 feet to the point of commencement.

11



Shell Rock River Watershed District

] G, P W/va7

This 9-acre property acquisition, with historic
oak woodlands, will be permanently
protected. Restoration plans for this property
include removing buckthorn and other
undesirable woody vegetation. The property

Il then be donated to the U.S. Fish and
wildlife Service to combine with the ICE
Waterfow| Production Area. This builds on
previous LSOHC funding that was used to
restore wetlands at the ICE WPA.

~L720th.Ave.

BAYYI0ZL

—1S°4ISZL

i’f
¢y

¥

$

- r‘ E
oty Gy .“dﬂ'.wll;?.\';:‘-,\u_.{:-e'_.‘;? -

Planndd
Accuitition
Currant ICRE Waterfowl
Production Aren

— .735th:Avel—

e %

110thist!

% ol
‘ iy
L2 +1251th;St-

157 rattoy

M aragemen

152 acres of oak savanna
management is planned for
Bhagyam, Twin Lakes, and
Goose Creek Waterfowl
Production Areas. Work
includes buckthorn and
honeysuckle removal as well as
wild parsnip and poison
hemlock removal. Diversity
seeding will also be completed
as this site has a known Rusty
Patch Bumble Bee sighting.
Wetland enhancements will be
conducted on Bhagyam WPA
by replacing a dike with a rock
! outlet or weir.

]
»




.
"
.
.
.
"
"
"
"
.
.
0l
-

swsew

—’2?==;Z )

oL
\\H [ENNIERNE ©

A streambank enhancement projoct will be
completed to connect the Shell Rock River to its
historic floodplain while reducing sedimentation.
This project will also incorporate habitat
features for fish and amphibians that includes
toe-wood installation.

s [

= Juglans Woods
\7“/3/500”03/ /@yf&vwﬁ&w ViF \ o
During the creation of the Juglans Woods yoe
AMA, a gravel pit had to be parceled out as
there was slill a lease on the sits. Now
finished, this proposal is requesting habitat
restoration of the site to be made suitable ,
for public use and donated back into the fi
AMA. £

Ju-Lake f/wgv’fwf

250 acres of additional in-lake
hahitat structures are p|onned for

(dgewater and Cast Main Bay. This will ; CONTACT U”
complement the first phase of in-lake L +507-377-5785
habitat structures already installed. Project'§ \, z www.shellrock.org
scope will include rock reefs, walleye \ 205 S Tst Ave.

spawning gravel, and boulder clusters. Albert Lea. MN 56007




Lessard-Sams Outdoor Heritage Council

Shell Rock River Watershed Habitat Restoration Program - Phase XIV
ML 2025 Request for Funding

Proposal #: HA11

General Information

Date: 06/04/2024

Proposal Title: Shell Rock River Watershed Habitat Restoration Program - Phase XIV
Funds Requested: $4,326,500

Confirmed Leverage Funds: $120,000

Is this proposal Scalable?: Yes

Manager Information

Manager's Name: Courtney Phillips

Title: Program and Project Manager
Organization: Shell Rock River Watershed District
Address: 305 S 1st Ave.

City: Albert Lea, MN 56007

Email: courtney.phillips@co.freeborn.mn.us
Office Number: 507-379-8782

Maobile Number: 507-402-4824

Fax Number:

Website: www.shellrock.org

Location Information

County Location(s}: Freeborn.

Eco regions in which work will take place:

e Prairie
Activity types:

s Protectin Fee

e Enhance

s Restore

Priority resources addressed by activity:

e Habitat

Page 1|16



Proposal #: HA11
Narrative

Abstract

The Shell Rock River Watershed District (SRRWD) is seeking funding for their Habitat Restoration Program to
restore, enhance, and protect 657 acres of essential prairie upland, wetland and streambank habitat across the
watershed. As a result, key biological functioning parcels will be permanently protected, streambank habitat will
be enhanced, vegetation and feeding sources will be restored for migratory fowl habitat and wetlands and oak
savannas will be restored. These projects are critical for the benefit of fish, waterfowl, and wildlife populations,
reversing the trend of wetland loss and habitat degradation in the prairie ecoregion.

Design and Scope of Work

The SRRWD created the Habitat Restoration Program to restore, protect, and enhance degraded habitat conditions
by implementing projects on a lake-shed basis. Specifically, Phase XIV will contribute to the District's goals by:

. Restore 112 acres of oak savanna landscape on Upper Twin Lake Wildlife Management Area (WMA) and
Ann & Leo Donahue WMA by conducting buckthorn removal.

. Restore 20 acres of streambank habitat to improve floodplain connectivity, over-winter open water
conditions, and to prevent further sedimentation into the watercourse.

. Installing 250 acres of in-lake habitat features, creating more productive, self-sustaining fisheries in
Fountain Lake and benefiting BIPOC and underserved communities.

. Acquire 9 acres from a willing landowner to expand an adjacent ICE Waterfowl Production Area (WPA).

. Habitat enhancement on a 34-acre site adjacent to Juglans Woods Aquatic Management Area (AMA). This is

an abandoned gravel pit that is intended to be donated to the AMA as fishing ponds and surrounding upland prairie
plantings, however, current conditions of the site are not safe for public use.

. Reestablish 152 acres of vegetation into upland prairie to improve pollinator species success with native
plant diversity, targeting the Rusty Patched Bumble Bee.
. Restore 80 acres of wetland basins, reversing the trend of wetland loss and habitat degradation while

improving nesting habitat and waterfowl food sources.

This proposal uses a programmatic approach to achieve protection, restoration, and enhancement of lakes,
wetlands, streams, and native prairie landscapes. The program includes projects that are prioritized on the
significance of the benefits to aquatic habitat, urgency of the work, availability of leveraged funds, location of
projects, and agreements with relevant planning documents. All projects listed above have landowner support,
who are eager to get funding. The SRRWD has a proven track record with the LSOHC in implementing projects that
protect, restore and enhance natural resources. The SRRWD continues to receive strong support for these projects
from landowners, local governments, and sporting organizations.

The program will also interconnect and reestablish important flyway habitats within Minnesota. Once completed,
the program will establish waterfowl and fish populations, increase habitat for wetland dependent wildlife, and
recreate the wildlife mecca in southern Minnesota. Finally, this program will preserve an outdoor legacy for
Minnesotans to use and enjoy for generations.

Explain how the proposal addresses habitat protection, restoration, and/or enhancement for fish,
game & wildlife, including threatened or endangered species conservation

When critical habitats are lost due to land use changes and other factors, restoring the habitat is imperative to the
protection of species and their ecological processes. Important species are disappearing at an alarming rate and
the SRRWD has an opportunity to protect their specific habitats. Many of the proposed projects are turning

Page 2|16



Proposal #: HA11
landscapes into multi-native species plantings that offer food, shelter, and breeding habitat for a wide array of

species.

All restoration and enhancement projects will have vegetation management in low grounds that include bulrush,
smartweed, and marsh milkweed species to provide habitat and food sources for migratory birds. Upland prairie
mix will be established to promote pollinator success. Enhancement efforts of this large scale provide habitat for
both spring and fall migration of waterfowl, overall increase the use days by migratory birds, and provide nesting
habitat.

Using the Minnesota DNR Rare Species Guide, the SRRWD has identified species of importance for the oak savanna
landscape. These species include the Loggerhead Shrike for birds, mussels such as the Round Pigtoe, and
amphibians including the Blanding’s Turtle.

Citing the Minnesota Wildlife Action Plan, Blanding’s turtles suffer from low reproductive rates and high nest
predation, exacerbated by habitat loss and degradation. The proposal area has a known hotspot for Blanding’s
turtles identified in the Wildlife Action Network. Projects like the wetland enhancements and streambank
restorations provide the needed wetland and upland habitat to complete the Blanding’s turtle life cycle.

The Loggerhead Shrike is listed as endangered and can be attributed to the loss of suitable shelterbelts and
grasslands. With the projects identified, prairie creation and tree management on current grasslands can provide
better habitat.

The Federally endangered Rusty Patched Bumble Bee has recently been documented on the Goose Creek WPA.
Following the Implementation Guidance document developed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 152 acres of
vegetation restoration will be conducted on the surrounding WPAs to better colony establishment and growth.

What are the elements of this proposal that are critical from a timing perspective?

For acquisition projects, landowner willingness is a large factor in determining the urgency to be completed.
Securing properties, while having a willing landowner, is imperative to its success. Landowners often get
frustrated if funding isn’t available when they want to sell. The acquisition in this proposal has an eager landowner
who came to the District for first right to purchase.

For the restoration and enhancement projects, with the extent of wetland, streambank, and in-lake habitat loss in
Minnesota, restoration efforts are an issue that need immediate attention. Science and resource-based planning
has been utilized to strategically select projects that will advance restoration goals specified in the SRRWD's
Restoration Program.

Projects selected in the program contribute to the success of long-term management plans. Key biological
functioning parcels will be permanently protected, streambanks will be enhanced, there will be improved access to
public lands, and vegetation will be restored.

Describe how the proposal expands habitat corridors or complexes and/or addresses habitat
fragmentation:

This proposal is specifically requesting funds for the acquisition of 9 acres, known as the Ghm property, to expand
‘the adjacent ICE WPA. The ICE WPA is a 253-acre site that was drained for farming. Over the years, conservation
easements and acquisitions have secured lands to restore the native prairie. The Ohm property is currently an

island of private ground surrounded by federal ownership. Acquiring this property will directly expand habitat
Page 3|16



Proposal #: HA11
corridors and the size of the WPA.

Additionally, 3 of the 7 proposed projects are located within a 3-mile radius of each other. This reduces habitat
fragmentation and improves the overall habitat carrying capacity of the corridor.

For parcels that are not directly adjacent to current protected areas, the SRRWD utilizes precision conservation
modeling with monitoring to identify Property Management Zones (PMZs) on a sub-watershed basis. The PMZs is a
watershed wide parcel review where habitat areas were ranked on a 1 to 3 scale. This scale incorporated a variety
of measures including size of the habitat complex to be protected, proximity to existing protection, and distance to
a water source. Remaining parcels either ranked as a 1 or 2, which are high value locations. Implementing site
specific habitat restorations projects are progressively improving populations of native fish, waterfowl and wildlife
habitat to once again create a wildlife mecca.

Which top 2 Conservation Plans referenced in MS97A.056, subd. 3a are most applicable to this
project?

e Minnesota Prairie Conservation Plan
s U.S.Fish and Wildlife Service Strategic Habitat Conservation Model

Explain how this proposal will uniquely address habitat resilience to climate change and its
anticipated effects on game, fish & wildlife species utilizing the protected or restored/enhanced
habitat this proposal targets.

In many prairie plantings, five different species types including wildflowers, legumes, warm-season grasses, cool-
season grasses and sedges/rushes are planted to mimic a native plant community. To address the anticipated
warmer temperatures, hardy species resistant to pests and diseases, that can be found in southern regions, are

selected. Doing so ensures that habitat needs such as nesting, shelter, and food sources, including pollen and seeds,
will be available in changing climate conditions.

For streambank restorations, natural channel design that includes restoring a floodplain bench to accommodate
higher flows reduces the likelihood of scour, severe undercutting, and erosion along streambanks and allows base
flow to be maintained in a primary channel when water is low. By doing so, fish, mussel, and invertebrate habitats
are more able to withstand extreme variability in water flow. Additionally, creating riffles and pools provides areas
of refuge and maintains critical oxygen levels.

Which LSOHC section priorities are addressed in this proposal?
Prairie

o Restore or enhance habitat on public lands

Describe how this project/program will produce and demonstrate a significant and permanent
conservation legacy and/or outcomes for fish, game, and wildlife, and if not permanent outcomes,
why it is important to undertake at this time:

All proposed projects included in this proposal will lead to permanent conservation by being installed on public

waters, existing WMAs, WPAs or involve acquisitions that will be permanent in public ownership. Permanent
habitat will result from the numerous proposed projects and native plantings.

Habitat degradation of wetlands, streams, and shallow lakes is an issue of importance that requires accelerated
Page 4|16



Proposal #: HA11
investment in permanent projects to reverse this degradation. Protection and restoration of this critical habitat is
the highest priority of the SRRWD and is directly affected by invasive vegetation, land use changes, increased water
demands, populations of invasive fish species such as common carp, and artificial drainage. Degradation in habitat
is influencing available food sources for game fish populations that include Northern Pike, Bluegill, Yellow Perch
and Walleye, and duck populations including Northern Pintail, Redhead, Canvasback and Lesser Scaup.

The streambank restoration project will create spawning habitat, cover, and refuge for fish, habitat for wildlife, and
will restore the growth of healthy aquatic vegetation. Oak savanna management includes removing buckthorn,
poison hemlock and honeysuckle treatment. Projects in this proposal also demonstrates a permanent conservation
legacy by restoring habitat on public lands, increasing public access to fishing, improving native fish reproduction,
and providing protection from long term endangerment from invasive plant species by incorporating vegetation
management.

Outcomes
Programs in prairie region:

e Remnant native prairies are part of large complexes of restored prairies, grasslands, and large and small
wetlands ~ Restored and enhanced parcels that include wetland restorations will be measured by the
increased number of use days for migrating waterfowl as well as increased species biodiversity survey (pre
and post restoration) that supports waterfowl. Upland prairie restorations will be monitored for increased
usage, such as Pheasant Roadside surveys. Additionally, the number of prairie acres restored, and wetland
acres created will be reported in the SRRWD's reporting framework. These measures will be evaluated against
the Minnesota’s Wildlife Management Area Acquisition - The Next 50 Years.

What other dedicated funds may collaborate with or contribute to this proposal?
e N/A
Per MS 97A.056, Subd. 24, Please explain whether the request is supplanting or is a substitution for

any previous funding that was not from a legacy fund and was used for the same purpose.

This request is not supplanting funding or substituting from any previous funding.

How will you sustain and/or maintain this work after the Outdoor Heritage Funds are expended?

The SRRWD has multiple funding sources including a citizen driven local option sales tax, local levy, and multiple
public and private funding sources to assist in the District’s restoration efforts. Following this LSOHC appropriation
timeline, the District will use their general fund dollars for maintenance implementations.

Additionally, the SRRWD is authorized by Minnesota state statute 103D and operates under a series of 10 year
Water Management Plans that are approved by the Minnesota Board of Soil and Water Resources (BWSR). These
plans include a comprehensive list detailing natural resource restoration, enhancement, along with protection and
management strategies, that can be used for funding in the future for maintenance.

Actions to Maintain Project Outcomes

| Year Source of Funds Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
' 2026-2029 Sales Tax and LSOHC Construction Vegetation -
Maintenance
2030+ Sales Tax Maintenance Maintenance -
Inspections [mplementation

Page 5|16



Proposal #: HA11
Provide an assessment of how your program may celebrate cultural diversity or reach diverse

communities in Minnesota, including reaching iow- and moderate-income households:

The SRRWD annually utilizes the Understanding Environmental Justice in Minnesota tool developed by the
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, to understand where BIPOC, diverse, and unserved communities are present
in the planning area by using the socioeconomic indicators layers. Projects identified in this proposal, specifically
the in-lake habitat project, are targeted to improve public lands that are located in, and used by, BIPOC and
underserved communities. This tool is ran annually to help determine project locations, along with the Priority
Management Zone mapping. The District will include the assessment outcomes in each of the project’s operation
and maintenance forms.

Additionally, the SRRWD has a digital option to view all completed work. Digital options give diverse community
members an option to engage regardless of color, transportation, and gender.

Activity Details
Requirements
Will county board or other local government approval be formally sought** prior to acquisition, per
97A.056 subd 13(j)?
Yes

Is the land you plan to acquire (fee title) free of any other permanent protection?
Yes

Wwill restoration and enhancement work follow best management practices including MS 84.973 Pollinator
Habitat Program?
Yes

Is the restoration and enhancement activity on permanently protected land per 97A.056, Subd 13(f), tribal
lands, and/or public waters per MS 103G.005, Subd. 15 or on lands to be acquired in this program?
Yes

Where does the activity take place?

o WMA
e Public Waters
s AMA
o WPA
Land Use

Will there be planting of any crop on OHF land purchased or restored in this program, either by the
proposer or the end owner of the property, outside of the initial restoration of the land?
No

Will insecticides or fungicides (including neonicotinoid and fungicide treated seed) be used within any
activities of this proposal either in the process of restoration or use as food plots?
No

Is this land currently open for hunting and fishing?

Yes
Page 6|16



Proposal #: HA11
Describe any variation from the State of Minnesota regulations:

Public waters are open to state fishing regulations. Private lands are currently not open to public hunting
but will be once acquired and restored.

Will the land be open for hunting and fishing after completion?
Yes

Describe any variation from the State of Minnesota regulations:
All lands will follow state regulations.

Who will eventually own the fee title land?
o Federal

Land acquired in fee will be designated as a:
« WPA

Are there currently trails or roads on any of the proposed acquisitions?
No

Will new trails or roads be developed or improved as a result of the OHF acquisition?
No

Will the land that you acquire (fee or easement) be restored or enhanced within this proposal's funding
and availability?
Yes

Other OHF Appropriation Awards
Have you received OHF dollars through LSOHC in the past?

Yes
Are any of these past appropriations still OPEN?
Yes
Approp Year Funding Amount Amount Spent to Funding Remaining % Spent to Date
Received Date
2024 $2,072,000 - - -
2023 $2,198,000 $8,250 $2,189,750 0.38%
2022 $1,438,000 $526,610 $911,390 36.62%
2021 $1,547,000 $1,371,647 $175,353 88.66%
2020 $1,918,000 $1,104,000 $814,000 57.56%
2019 $2,046,000 $2,046,000 - 100.0%
2018 $1,421,000 $1,421,000 - 100.0%
2017 $1,779,000 $1,779,000 - 100.0%
2016 $1,200,000 $1,200,000 - 100.0%
2015 $2,414,000 $2,405,200 $8,800 99.64%
2013 $1,827,000 $1,827,000 - 100.0%
2011 $2,577,000 $2,577,000 - 100.0%
2010 $655,000 $655,000 - 100.0%
Totals $23,092,000 $16,920,707 $6,171,293 73.28%
Timeline
| Activity Name | Estimated Completion Date |

Page 7|16



Proposal #: HA11

Begin project planning, design, and permitting work for
restorations and enhancements. Complete survey and
appraisals for acquisitions.

Late 2025-2026

Begin restoration and enhancement projects during the
2026-2027 construction season following completion of
design and permitting.

2026-2027 Construction Season

Finalize acquisitions and start seeding the sites for May 2028
restoration.

Implement vegetation enhancement on restoration projects, | July 2029
complete final project construction.

Conduct maintenance and monitoring of all restoration and Ongoing

habitat improvement projects.

Page 8|16



Totals

Budget

Proposal #: HA11

Item

Funding Request

Total Leverage

Leverage Source

Total

Personnel

$80,000

$20,000

$100,000

Contracts

$3.312,800

Local Option Sales Tax

$3,312,800

Fee Acquisition w/
PILT

Fee Acquisition w/o
PILT

$89,700

$89,700

Easement Acquisition

Easement
Stewardship

Travel

Professional Services

$100,000

Local Option Sales Tax

Direct Support
Services

$844,000

$944,000

DNR Land Acquisition
Costs

Capital Equipment

Other
Equipment/Tools

Supplies/Materials

DNR IDP

Grand Total

$4,326,500

$120,000

$4,446,500

Personnel

Position

Annual FTE

Years
Working

Funding
Request

Total
Leverage

Leverage
Source

Total

Program
Assistant

0.43

5.0

$35,000

$10,000

Local Option
Sales Tax

$45,000

Program
Manager

0.43

5.0

$45,000

$10,000

Local Option
Sales Tax

$55,000

Amount of Request: $4,326,500
Amount of Leverage: $120,000

Leverage as a percent of the Request: 2.77%
DSS + Personnel: $80,000
As a % of the total request: 1.85%
Easement Stewardship: -
As a % of the Easement Acquisition: -

Total Leverage (from

above)

Amount Confirmed

% of Total Leverage

Amount Anticipated

% of Total Leverage

$120,000

$120,000

100.0%

- 1 0.0%

Detail leverage sources and confirmation of funds:
Leverage sources include the District's local option sales tax.

Does this proposal have the ability to be scalable?

Yes

Page 9]16




Proposal #: HA11
If the project received 50% of the requested funding

Describe how the scaling would affect acres/activities and if not proportionately reduced, why?

The District submits this proposal with the capability and intentions to complete all projects if fully funded.
A 50% reduction would mean the in-lake habitat project would have to be removed, while all other projects
would stay.

Describe how personnel and DSS expenses would be adjusted and if not proportionately reduced,
why?

The District does not use DSS. Personnel would be reduced from $100,000 down to $60,000, similar to a
proportionate reduction.

If the project received 30% of the requested funding

Describe how the scaling would affect acres/activities and if not proportionately reduced, why?
Although not ideal, funding would be centered on the one acquisition, the oak savanna management, WPA
restoration, and the Juglans enhancement project. The remaining funds would be broken down into phases
of the larger projects, which could lead to higher costs later on.

Describe how personnel and DSS expenses would be adjusted and if not proportionately reduced,
why?

The District does not use DSS. The grant funded personnel costs would be reduced to $45,000 but the in-
kind staff dollar amounts would be moved from personnel to professional expenses, creating a near
proportionate reduction.

Personnel

Has funding for these positions been requested in the past?

Yes
Please explain the overlap of past and future staffing and position levels previously received and
how that is coordinated over multiple years?
The SRRWD has an extensive time-tracking system that allows staff members to track time for each project
within each grant. Each year, this system is updated to reflect current active grants.

Contracts

What is included in the contracts line?
All the work in the contracts line is centered on enhancement and restoration construction costs minus
professional services and staff time.

Professional Services

What is included in the Professional Services line?

e Appraisals

e Design/Engineering

e Surveys

o Title Insurance and Legal Fees

Page 10|16



Proposal #: HA11
Fee Acquisition

What is the anticipated number of fee title acquisition transactions?
There is one fee title acquisition transaction planned.

Federal Funds

Do you anticipate federal funds as a match for this program?
No

Page 11|16



Proposal #: HA11

Output Tables
Acres by Resource Type (Table 1)
Type Wetland Prairie | Forest Habitat Total Acres
Restore 0 0 0 422 422
Protect in Fee with State PILT Liability 0 0 0 0 0
Protect in Fee w/o State PILT Liability 0 0 0 9 9
Protect in Easement 0 0 0 0 0
Enhance 0 0 0 226 226
Total 0 0 0 657 657
Total Requested Funding by Resource Type (Table 2)
Type Wetland Prairie Forest Habitat Total Funding
Restore - $2,444,000 $2,444,000
Protect in Fee with State PILT Liability - - - -
Protect in Fee w/o State PILT Liability - $105,500 $105,500
Protect in Easement - - -
Enhance - $1,777,000 $1,777,000
Total - - - $4,326,500 $4,326,500
Acres within each Ecological Section (Table 3)
Type Metro/Urban | Forest/Prairie | SE Forest Prairie N. Forest Total Acres
Restore 0 0 0 422 0 422
Protect in Fee with State 0 0 0 0 0 0
PILT Liability
Protect in Fee w/o State 0 0 0 9 0 9
PILT Liability
Protect in Easement 0 0 0 0 0 0
Enhance 0 0 0 226 0 226
Total 0 0 0 657 0 657
Total Requested Funding within each Ecological Section (Table 4)
Type Metro/Urban | Forest/Prairie | SE Forest Prairie N. Forest Total

Funding

Restore - $2,444,000 - $2,444,000
Protect in Fee with State - - - - -
PILT Liability
Protect in Fee w/o State - $105,500 - $105,500
PILT Liability
Protect in Easement - - = - -
Enhance = - - $1,777,000 - $1,777,000
Total - - - | $4,326,500 -| $4,326,500
Average Cost per Acre by Resource Type (Table 5)
Type Wetland Prairie Forest Habitat
Restore - - $5,791
Protect in Fee with State PILT Liability - -
Protect in Fee w/o State PILT Liability - $11,722
Protect in Easement - -
Enhance - - $7,862
Average Cost per Acre by Ecological Section (Table 6)
Type Metro/Urban Forest/Prairie SE Forest Prairie N. Forest ]
Restore -

Protect in Fee with State
PILT Liability

$5,791 -

Page 12|16



Proposal #: HA11

Protect in Fee w/o State - $11,722 -
\ PILT Liability
Protect in Easement B - -
Enhance - $7,862 -
Target Lake/Stream/River Feet or Miles
45,750 feet
Page 13|16




Proposal #: HA11
Parcels

Sign-up Criteria?
No

Explain the process used to identify, prioritize, and select the parcels on your list:

Parcels are selected using the Property Management Zones (PMZs). The PMZs are identified using precision
conservation modeling, along with monitoring, and science-based targeting. Parcels are then prioritized and
ranked based on the degree of habitat degradation, restoration potential, and landowner interest and support. All
parcels listed below have willing landowners ready to initiate the projects if funding allows.

Restore / Enhance Parcels

Name County TRDS Acres | Est Cost Existing Description
Protection
Twin Lakes WPA Restoration Freeborn | 10122211 62 $66,000 | Yes Oak savanna restoration

through buckthorn removal
and grassland
management.

Goose Creek WPA Restoration Freeborn | 10122224 80 $45,000 | Yes ‘I'ree and brush removal
and oak savanna
restoration by removal of
undesirable woody species.

Bhagyam WPA Restoration Freeborn | 10121230 10 $30,000 | Yes Wetland restoration with
dike installation and poison
hemlock removal.

Shell Rock River Streambank Freeborn | 10120232 20 $150,000 | Yes Stabilize failed
Restoration streambanks and
incorporate habitat
features such as toe wood.

Juglans Woods AMA Wetland Freeborn | 10221225 80 $550,000 | Yes Wetland restoration and

Enhancement connection of river
floodplain.

Juglans Habitat Enhancement Freeborn | 10221225 34 | $1,100,000 | Yes Enhancements of an

abandoned gravel pit for
habitat and fishponds to be
donated to the adjacent
AMA.

0Oak Savanna Mangement Freeborn | 10222212 12 $10,700 | Yes Magaksica WMA oak
savanna restoration
through buckthorn
removal.

Oak Savanna Management Freeborn | 10222211 100 $89,300 | Yes Ann & Leo Donahue oak
savanna restoration
through buckthorn
removal.

East Main Bay In-Lake Habitat Freeborn | 10221209 120 | $1,050,000 | Yes In-lake habitat including
spawning gravel, boulder
clusters, and fish cribs

Edgewater In-Lake Habitat Freeborn | 10221205 130 | $1,050,000 | Yes In-lake habitat including
spawning gravel, boulder
clusters, and fish cribs

Protect Parcels with Buildings

Name County TRDS Acres | Est Cost Existing Buildings | Value of
Protection Buildings
Ohm Property Freeborn 10222206 9 $105,500 [ No 3 $0

Page 14|16



Proposal #: HA11

Page 15|16



Proposal #: HA11

Parcel Map
-

B1,e Elrth "m'Seca S}..’. ‘dege
raru,a ure F*".er orn Moy, -~

xK

b4
*
*
= _ S
[ |

@ Protect in Easement
A Protect in Fee with PILT
B Protect in Fee W/O PILT

Restore

Enhance

Other

Page 16|16

@mi



